P. 0. Box 95

San Andreas, CA 95249
(209) 754-4468 Phone
(209) 754-2537 Fax

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors
Tues. Jan 21, 2020
9am
Mark Twain Medical Center Classroom 2
768 Mountain Ranch Rd,
San Andreas, CA

Agenda

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that
ensures our residents have the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and
compassionate health care”.

1. Call to order:

2. Roll Call:

3. Approval of Agenda: Public Comment - Action

4. Public Comment on matters not listed on the Agenda:

The purpose of this section of the agenda is to allow comments and input from the public on
matters within the jurisdiction of the Mark Twain Health Care District not listed on the Agenda.
(The public may also comment on any item listed on the Agenda prior to Board action on such
item.) Limit of 3 minutes per speaker. The Board appreciates your comments however it will not
discuss and cannot act on items not on the agenda.
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5. Consent Agenda: Public Comment - Action

All Consent items are considered routine and may be approved by the District Board without any
discussion by a single roll-call vote. Any Board Member or member of the public may remove any
item from the Consent list. If an item is removed, it will be discussed separately following approval

of the remainder of the Consent items.

A. Un-Approved Minutes:

e Finance Committee Meeting Minutes for Dec. 11, 2019
e Un-Approved Special Board Meeting Minutes for Dec. 4, 2019
e Un-Approved Special Board Meeting Minutes for Dec.18, 2019

B. Correspondence:
e Common Ground - Grant Report (12-31-2019)

6. MTHCD Reports:

e Association of California Health Care Districts (ACHD):
e Meetings with MTHCD CEO:

e Ambulance Service Update:

D. Chief Executive Officer’'s RePOIt: ....cooiiiiii i i e

e CSDA Education Opportunities:
e Strategic Planning Workshop:

e Donation - MTHCD to MTMC Foundation:

e USDA Form 271 - 2019:

e VSHWC “Quality” Report:

This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer

Agenda — Jan 21, 2020 Special MTHCD Board Meeting

Ms. Al-Rafiq

............ Ms. Reed

............ Dr. Smart

............ Dr. Smart



e VS H&W Center — Draft Policies and Forms: Public Comment — Action
o Policies - Valley Springs Health & Wellness Center:

Punctuation & Grammar Changes — Please Submit to District Office Staff.

Draft Medical Staff Composition 12-26-2019

Draft Infection Control Overview 12-26-19

Draft Registering Patient Complaints 12-26-19
Draft Sterile Supplies and Instruments 12-26-19
Draft Policy Development and Review 12-26-19
Draft Waived Testing Influenza A and B 12-27-19
Draft Waived Testing CoaguChek XS PT

Draft Waived Testing Hemoglobin A1C 12-27-2019

N~ WONE

F. Ad Hoc Real EState: ... e Ms. Al-Rafiq / Ms. Reed

e Update on Valley Springs Property - Phase II:

G. Stay VertiCal CalaVveras: ... ..c.ouiie it e e e et e e e e e e e Mr. Shetzline

A, FINanCe CoOmMMIttEe . . ittt e e e e e e Ms. Atkinson
e Annual Audit: Public Comment — Action...............cccoveiiiiiiii e e e e e .M Jackson
¢ Financial Statements (Nov. & Dec. 2019): Public Comment — Action............... Mr. Wood

B. Ad Hoc Policy Committee: .....ccooiii i e e e Ms. Sellick / Ms. Atkinson

e Resolution 2020-01 Public Comment - Action

o Policies 19, 20, 21, & 24 Were Presented for 30-day review on 12-18-2019
Action:

= Policy 19 — Public Record Request: Public Comment:
= Policy 20 — Records Retention: Public Comment:

= Policy 21 — Amendments to Policies, Procedures & Waiver of Policies:
Public Comment: Action

= Policy 24 — Website Content & Social Media: Public Comment:

C. Personnel CommIittee: ....oii it e Ms. Reed / Ms. Toepel
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D. Golden Health Community Grants Committee: ..............cccceeenn .. Ms. Al-Rafiq / Ms. Sellick

8. Board Comment and Request for Future Agenda Items:

A. Announcements of Interest to the Board or the Public:
B. Community Connection:
e On the Right Track at Bret Harte High School — April 20:

¢ On the Right Track at Calaveras High School — April 24

e ACHD Leadership Feb. 20-21 in Sacramento:

9. Next Meeting:

A. The next meeting will be Wednesday Feb. 26, 2020. Please note new meeting time of 9am.

10. Adjournment: Public Comment — Action
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P. O. Box 95

San Andreas, CA 95249
(209) 754-4468 Phone
(209) 754-2537 Fax

Finance Committee Meeting
Mark Twain Medical Center Education Center — Classroom 5
768 Mountain Ranch Road
San Andreas, CA 95249
9:00 am
Wed. December 11, 2019

Approved Minutes

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that ensures our residents have
the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and compassionate health care”.

1. Call to order:

The meeting was called to order by Treasurer, Susan Atkinson at 9:03 am
2. Roll Call:

Present for roll call was Ms. Atkinson and Ms. Hack with one vacant seat.

3. Approval of Agenda: Public Comment Action:
Ms. Hack moved to approve the Agenda. Ms. Atkinson provide her second and the motion passed 2-0.

4. Public Comment On Matters Not Listed On The Agenda:

Hearing None.

5. Consent Agenda: Public Comment Action
A. Un-Approved Minutes:
e Finance Committee Meeting Minutes for November 13, 2019:

Public Comment: Hearing None.
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Ms. Hack moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Ms. Atkinson provide her second and the motion
passed 2-0.

6. Chief Executive Officer’s Report:

Dr. Smart: Received the Form 271 late on Monday. It was lacking information so will not be available
until the next meeting; there is still $600k (+/-) being held until Diede Construction has satisfied the
punch list items.

e Foundation Grant Request - $300,000 Copperopolis Clinic:

Ms. Cantrell: Was just informed that the District’'s donation to the mammography equipment will require
an additional OSHPD change pushing the completion out to Feb.

Dr. Smart: The following items were in consideration of the District granting additional funds to the
MTMC Foundation for the purpose of relocating the Copperopolis Clinic to 421 Sawmill in Copperopolis
() the District would review the lease between MTMC & the Copper Valley Properties, landlord, (not
yet completed) and would see Dignity match funds in the same increments as granted by the District to
the Foundation i.e.: the mammography equipment ($372k) and now the relocation of the Copperopolis
Clinic ($300k). In the meantime, Dignity has expressed their desire to follow Article Il Dignity Health
Duties from the May 31, 2019 Lease with the District allowing (in part)...... Dignity to make a one-time
cash donation to the Foundation of the same amount as the District Grant not to exceed One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000.00). Dignity Health’s contribution shall be due and payable to the Foundation sixty
(60) days after the District notifies Dignity in writing of the District’s cash grant.

Ms. Cantrell: Next Tues. the Foundation Board will review/approve the $300k gift agreement with the
District and would like to invite Ms. Reed and Dr. Smart to join Mr. Archer and herself for a tour of the
proposed Copperopolis Clinic property. The District is granting $300k and the Foundation has fund
raising plans for an additional $25k but expects the budget will be about $450-750 due to plumbing
issues with the County. She will expedite getting the budget to the District. In addition, she’d like to
propose that the remainder of the $1,000,000,00 ($328k) be granted by the District to freshen up the
MTMC surgical suites.

Dr. Smart: Needs the following items to put the Copperopolis Clinic Relocation project on the Jan.
Finance Committee meeting agenda (1) gift agreement with Mr. Archer and Jon Van Boening’s
signature affixed (2) project draft budget (3) assurance from Dignity to match the District’s gift and to
finish the project (4) plan to address cost overruns (usually 10-15%).

7. Accountant’s Report: Public Comment Action

¢ November Financials Will Be Presented to The Committee:

Mr. Wood: Was not able to prepare the Nov. Financials as the Accounting Position has not been filled
yet (vacated Nov 18, 2019) however he has been backfilling for the open position and keeping the bills
paid. He plans to have the Nov. and Dec. Financials available at the Jan. meeting; USDA responded to
Mr. Jackson, JWT so the audit is moving along, and he expects to see a clean audit report presented to
the Board in Jan.; there are two CD’s maturing at Umpqua Bank that will be moved to Bank of Stockton
which is offering a good return in addition to extending free banking to employees.
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e |nvestment & Reserve Accounts:

Mr. Wood: The District is very liquid and he recommends staying the course with the investments that
are in place because they were well thought out and adheres to code requirements.

Dr. Smart: Looks at three things when it comes to investments (1) what is the risk? (2) is it legal? (3)
does it comply with the District’s investment policy?

8. Treasurer’s Report:

e Reserve Account Allocations:
Iltem Tabled:
e Consideration to fill seat on Finance Committee:

Dr. Smart: Information will be presented at the Board meeting on how to fill the seat.
9. Comments and Future Agenda ltems:

The next meeting’s agenda will include the Draft Audit, Nov. and Dec. Financials and an update on the
Foundation Grant request to relocate the Copperopolis Clinic.

10. Next Meeting:

Special Finance Committee Meeting will be held on Jan. 16, 2020 at 9am.

To accommodate Rick Wood, CFO and auditor, Rick Jackson, JWT the Board will meet on Jan. 215t at
9am instead of Jan 22",

Starting in Feb. and on-going the next Finance Committee meeting will be held on the same day as the
Board meeting starting at 7:30 am on February 26", 2020.

11. Adjournment: Action

Ms. Hack moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:09am. Ms. Atkinson provide her second and the motion
passed 2-0.
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P. 0. Box 95

San Andreas, CA 95249
(209) 754-4468 Phone
(209) 754-2537 Fax

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors
Wednesday December 4, 2019
4:00pm
Mark Twain Medical Center Classroom 5
768 Mountain Ranch Rd,

San Andreas, CA

Un- Approved Minutes

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that
ensures our residents have the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and
compassionate health care”.

1. Call to order:

The meeting was called to order by President, Lin Reed at 4:04PM
2. Roll Call:

Present for roll call was Lin Reed, MBA OTR/L; Susan Atkinson, MSW; Debbie Sellick, CMP and
Talibah Al-Rafiq. Effective Oct 31, 2019 - One Vacancy.

3. Approval of Agenda: Public Comment - Action

Public Comment. Hearing none.

Ms. Atkinson moved to approve the agenda. Ms. Al-Rafiq provided her second and the motion
passed. 4-0.

4. Public Comment on matters not listed on the Agenda:

Hearing none.
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5. Board Vacancy:

A. Interview Candidates:

Dr. Smart: Described the public process that the District will follow to fill a Board seat vacated by Ms.
Radford effective October 31, 2019 to move to Southern CA. The District is obligated by Gov. Code
81780 to fill a Board Seat vacancy within 60 days by appointment or election as follows; the
Calaveras County Elections Office was notified of the vacancy on Nov. 4™; by Nov. 8" the
announcement of a vacancy was posted (hard copy), ads were placed, it was sent by email and put
on the District web page; applicants are required to reside and be a registered voter in Calaveras
County; Board members are required to attend Board meetings and their seat will be considered
vacated if they miss three consecutive meetings without Presidential approval. In addition to the
Finance Committee which is a standing committee there are four ad-hoc committees that Board
members participate in. The appointee from this process will be sworn in and will attend their first
Board meeting Dec. 18™ Special Board meeting. There is a $100.00 stipend (max.) for attending any
one meeting per month. Four applications were received. The Board will take turns asking interview
guestions of the applicants. Upon completion of the interview process the Board will be openly polled.
In the event there is a tie vote there will be additional discussion within the Board and a new roll-call
vote will be taken. Once a clear choice has been determined the President will administer the Oath of
Office and the Elections office will be notified. The appointee will serve until Nov. 2020 at which time
he/she could run for the Board seat as an incumbent to finish out the remaining two years Ms.
Radford’s term.

Ms. Reed: Mr. Kierklo had other commitments so withdrew his application; she and fellow Board
members proceeded to interview the following applicants from a prepared set of questions.

e Lori Hack:

e Edward Kierklo:
e Sal LoFranco:
e Kathi Toepel:

B. Appoint Board Member: Public Comment - Action:
Public Comment: Hearing none:
Ms. Atkinson moved to poll the Board. Ms. Al-Rafiq provided her second and the motion passed 4-0.

Ms. Atkinson: Encouraged each applicant to consider all the up-and-coming positions as there are
many areas to serve in addition to serving as a Board member.

Ms. Reed: Pleased with the number of applicants and qualifications the candidates presented. In
addition to the time commitment being a Board member there is an expectation that the candidate will
attend the ACHD leadership training.
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Dr. Smart: March will be the District’s next strategic planning meeting. It is the District’s planning
framework for the following 2 years. He encourages input as it is a public meeting.

A roll-call vote was taken to appoint a new Board member:
Ms. Atkinson voted for Ms. Hack

Ms. Sellick voted for Ms. Toepel

Ms. Al-Rafiq voted for Ms. Toepel

Ms. Reed voted for Ms. Hack

Results Ms. Hack two votes and Ms. Toepel two votes.

Given the tie-vote the Board went into discussion and welcomed candidate comment regarding time
commitment.

Ms. Hack: If not selected she plans to remain on the Finance Committee and anticipates having
additional time as the Finance Committee will be on the same day as the Board meeting.

Ms. Toepel is retiring this month and will have additional time and offered to work on the Grants
Committee.

Mr. LoFranco: Thought the candidates were excellent and really liked the openness of the process.

Ms. Reed: Clarified the process that the applicant could be given the Oath of Office after becoming a
registered voter.

Public Comment: Hearing none.
A roll-call vote was taken to appoint a new Board member:
Ms. Al-Rafiq voted for Ms. Toepel
Ms. Sellick voted for Ms. Toepel
Ms. Atkinson voted for Ms. Toepel
Ms. Reed voted for Ms. Hack
Ms. Reed administered the Oath of Office to Ms. Toepel.
C. Board Member On-Boarding Process
Dr. Smart: Will be meeting with Ms. Toepel to start the orientation process

6. Board Comment and Request for Future Agenda Items:

A. Announcements of Interest to the Board or the Public:

Hearing none.
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B. Community Connection:
Hearing None.

10. Next Meeting:

A. Due to the December Holidays the Meeting will be Wednesday December 18, 2019

11. Adjournment: Public Comment — Action

Ms. Al-Rafig moved to adjourn the meeting at 5:12pm. Ms. Sellick provided her second and the
motion passed 4-0.
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P. 0. Box 95

San Andreas, CA 95249
(209) 754-4468 Phone
(209) 754-2537 Fax

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors
Wednesday December 18, 2019
7:30 am
Mark Twain Medical Center Classroom 2
768 Mountain Ranch Rd,
San Andreas, CA

UN- Approved Minutes

Mark Twain Health Care District Mission Statement
“Through community collaboration, we serve as the stewards of a community health system that
ensures our residents have the dignity of access to care that provides high quality, professional and
compassionate health care”.

Call to order:
The meeting was called to order by President, Lin Reed at 7:32am.
Roll Call:

Present for roll call was Lin Reed, MBA OTR/L; Susan Atkinson, MSW; Debbie Sellick CMP; Talibah
Al-Rafig and Kathi Toepel.

Approval of Agenda: Public Comment - Action

Ms. Al-Rafig moved to approve the Agenda. Ms. Atkinson provided her second and the motion
passed 5-0.

Public Comment on matters not listed on the Agenda:

Hearing none.

Consent Agenda: Public Comment - Action

A. Un-Approved Minutes:
e Finance Committee Meeting Minutes for Nov. 13, 2019.
e Un-Approved Special Board Meeting Minutes for Nov. 20, 2019.
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B. Correspondence:

e Sal LoFranco - Thank You (Dec. 5, 2019)

Ms. Atkinson: Finance Committee met but financials were not available for review and wasn't
included in the Board'’s pkt for this meeting.
Public Comment: Hearing none.

Ms. Al-Rafig moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Ms. Sellick provided her second and the motion
passed 5-0.

MTHCD Reports:

e Meetings with MTHCD CEO:

Ms. Reed: Items of discussion included: how to staff the accounting position; how to resolve
accounting with leases affecting the medical office buildings (MOB); review and being respectful of
the Brown Act and the Board only interacts with the CEO which is consistent with the MTMC Board
and ACHD training that reminds the Board they only have one employee which is the CEO.

e Re-Assignments District Committees:

Ms. Reed: Announced the Ad Hoc Committees the Board members have agreed to serve on as
follows; Policy Committee will be chaired by Ms. Sellick; Grants Committee and Real Estate
Committee will be chaired by Ms. Al-Rafiq; Finance Committee which is the only standing committee
will be chaired by Ms. Atkinson, Treasurer. The following have agreed to sit on subsequent
committees; Ms. Atkinson - Policy Committee; Ms. Toepel - Finance & Personnel; Ms. Sellick —
Grants. Ms. Reed will chair the Personnel Committee and sit on the Real Estate Committee.

Public Comment: Hearing none.

Ms. Reed: Suggested the Board be polled allowing Ms. Sellick to serve the remainder of Ms.
Radford’s term as Secretary. Ms. Atkinson moved to approve and Ms. Al-Rafiq provided her second
and the motion passed 5-0.
e MTMC Community Board Report:
Ms. Al-Rafig: There was no meeting to report on:
e MTMC Board of Directors:

Ms. Reed: There was no meeting to report on:

e CMS Policy Revisions:
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Dr. Smart: Requirements have been changed from reviewing policies annually to every 2 years.

e Strategic Planning Workshop:

Dr. Smart: requested Board input for planning the 2020 Strategic Plan. Ms. Reed and Ms. Al-Rafiq
volunteered to work on the planning.

e Donation - MTHCD to MTMC Foundation:

Ms. Reed: Announced the Foundation had invited her and Dr. Smart to tour the proposed location in
the Copper Square for the Copper Clinic.

Dr. Smart: Mr. Archer has requested Dignity make increment payments to mirror the District not to
exceed the $1mill grant as laid out in the May 31, 2019 Lease agreement.

Ms. Cantrell: The Foundation Board approved the Gift Agreement at their Dec. 17, 2019 meeting and
will supply the District with the proposed Copper Square lease agreement and budget.

E. Valley Springs Health & Wellness Center:
e USDA Form 271 Oct. 2019:

Dr. Smart: Is working on the last VSHWC Clinic payment to Diede Construction. There will be a true-
up with the change orders factored in as well as follow-up on the punch list. The Pharmacy lease is to
be signed next week and will be a separate change order with a separate contract. After several
changes from the County the landscaping is working on “plan 3” and will include adding additional
plants to the rock already in place.

e VSHWC “Quality” Report:

Dr. Smart: Referenced (pkt) page 15 as the VSHWC Quality Report. The Clinic will be working on the
patient no-shows.

F. Ad Hoc Real Estate:

e Update on Valley Springs Property - Phase II:

Ms. Al-Rafig: Intends to set another meeting with PACE which is a SF based adult day health care
designed to keep patients out of ER; the Real Estate Committee has been contacted by a VS
property owner and she will report out on that at a later time.

e Children’s Advocacy Center:

Dr. Smart: Toured the CAC and was impressed with all that they have been doing. Arrangements are
being made to provide more parking spaces at the site.

G. Stay Vertical Calaveras:
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Mr. Shetzline: Is continuing with training for instructors and plans to write a grant proposal to
Calaveras Foundation which closes Jan. 30; he’ll look into a grant from Robert Wood and has
received $750 from the Lions Club.

Committee Reports:

Finance Committee:

e Financial Statements (Nov. 2019): Public Comment — Action

Mr. Wood: With the vacant accounting position he didn’t have a financial statement to present but will
at the Jan. 2020 meeting. The District is solid, liquid and the bills are getting paid.

Public Comment: Hearing none: No action was taken.

Ad Hoc Policy Committee: ......coovvvviie e, Ms. Atkinson / Ms. Al-Rafiq

e Policies 19, 20, 21, & 24 Presented for 30-day Review:

Dr. Smart: Upon completion of the 30-day review period will prepare a resolution to present Policies
19, 20, 21 and 24 to the Board for approval.

e Board Vacancy Policy:

Ms. Reed: Requested staff forward the Board Vacancy Policy to legal for an opinion.

Personnel Committee:

Nothing to report:

B. Golden Health Community Grants Committee:

Dr. Smart: Staff will address policy, budget and the request to add a community member to the
committee.

Board Comment and Request for Future Agenda ltems:

Announcements of Interest to the Board or the Public:
Community Connection:
e Rural Domestic Preparedness Consortium:

0 MGT 403 Access & Functional Needs Preparedness Planning for Rural
Communities — Feb 18, 2020:

Ms. Reed and Ms. Al-Rafiq plan to attend.
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Next Meeting:

The next meeting will be Tuesday January 21, 2019. Please note new meeting time of 9am.

Dr. Smart: The Finance Committee will meet Jan 16% to review the 2019 audit.

Adjournment: Public Comment — Action

Public Comment: Hearing none.

Ms. Atkinson moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:38am. Ms. Sellick provided her second and the
motion passed 5-0.
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ACHD Advocate
January 2020

In This Edition:
e From the Desk of Ken Cohen, CEO
« Legislative Update
e Upcoming Events

From the Desk of Ken Cohen, CEO

Happy New Year! As we ring in 2020, we are looking forward to

providing our Members with continued advocacy and education.

Starting in February this monthly newsletter, the Advocate, will
become an exclusive Member benefit. If you are not a Member of ACHD and
would like to continue receiving these important updates, the weekly Legislative
report, our free monthly Webinar Education Series and the many other valuable
Member Benefits, contact us today.

We are also focusing on many exciting changes in 2020. ACHD’s Board of
Directors is looking to fill 2 vacant positions and is currently seeking Member
applicants. We have extended the deadline through January 24th to
accommodate this additional vacant position. If you are interested in getting more
involved and serving on ACHD’s Board, please contact us and |learn more here.

This is your last chance to weigh in on important educational changes that ACHD
is embarking on. Please provide your feedback here about your preferences for
ACHD Regional Education events. In addition, please take this survey regarding
our new 2021 Annual Meeting and Leadership Academy merger.

Lastly, I'd like to congratulate John C. Fremont Healthcare District for Re-
Certifying in December 2019 through ACHD’s Certification Program. To find out
more about this program, or to begin your District’'s application, click here.

We look forward to working with you in the New Year to improve the health and
wellness of your communities.

Legislative Update
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Thank you to Members who completed the Advocacy Survey; your feedback will
continue to be incorporated as ACHD engages on policy. ACHD’s Advocacy
Team, Amber King and Sarah Bridge, finished out 2019 with District tours for two
new legislators.

Ouir first visit was with District staff for Senator
Andreas Borgeas at John C. Fremont Healthcare
District for a tour and discussion of the work being
done at the District. The meeting served as an
important step toward building a relationship with
Senator Borgeas'’s office.

Our final tour of 2019 was with Senator Melissa
Hurtado and Sierra View Healthcare District. The
Senator showed interest in rural health care,
especially the impending workforce shortages. ACHD
looks forward to a continued positive relationship with
her office.

January 6 marked the Legislature's return to Sacramento and the beginning of the
last year of the 2019-2020 legislative session. Legislators have begun introducing
a variety of new bills and advancing last session's two-year bills. As you may
remember, Assembly Bill 890 by Assemblymember Jim Wood was marked two-
year in Assembly Appropriations Committee. AB 890, would expand the scope of
practice for nurse practitioners.

AB 890 continues to be a high-priority bill for ACHD. Please help ACHD get this
bill signed into law this year, by sending a letter of support. You can read
ACHD's letter of support here and use this sample letter to easily submit your
support. Email your finished letters to sarah.bridge@achd.org.

Lastly, Governor Gavin Newsom will introduce his proposed 2020-21 California
budget this morning at 10:30 a.m. You can watch a live stream of this on the
Governor's Twitter here. ACHD will be sharing a breakdown of the budget in the
coming weeks to Members.

Upcoming Events

Hotel Cutoff and Early Bird Discount Deadline Fast Approaching!
Register by January 29, 2020
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http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001d373vXsJerwK1_pUuijcf9ggM_zv3KaG7-LMWAczCqr7--qgVBebTalaLYTu6tQYWQ81M-8sN0uBmhTzHmQbphKgUtl-3xtOQHw18oSThGQdhd3LTYJdZnC1dydUNDiOjaeUfVI07vDntjE_kw56eYD9qeGwsDWiMLyRgTPD2xN5sqx2jRlll-lmCvTC5nOJZCTm5NyB8m-lDW62avBayzpvt2iQwsq8j5Mip1uNThQ=&c=BUQdTYZTJAvB1bQXc3TTG8X7gbUtKrkmHMMcshgFT_JH2DTZ0-grvw==&ch=D3Hu-qyA9pVPC727wuY_zFWMbZrUkxX7Ckq9bRbSpOtJAV-t74Yi1w==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001d373vXsJerwK1_pUuijcf9ggM_zv3KaG7-LMWAczCqr7--qgVBebTalaLYTu6tQYWQ81M-8sN0uBmhTzHmQbphKgUtl-3xtOQHw18oSThGQdhd3LTYJdZnC1dydUNDiOjaeUfVI07vDntjE_kw56eYD9qeGwsDWiMLyRgTPD2xN5sqx2jRlll-lmCvTC5nOJZCTm5NyB8m-lDW62avBayzpvt2iQwsq8j5Mip1uNThQ=&c=BUQdTYZTJAvB1bQXc3TTG8X7gbUtKrkmHMMcshgFT_JH2DTZ0-grvw==&ch=D3Hu-qyA9pVPC727wuY_zFWMbZrUkxX7Ckq9bRbSpOtJAV-t74Yi1w==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001d373vXsJerwK1_pUuijcf9ggM_zv3KaG7-LMWAczCqr7--qgVBebTalaLYTu6tQY8TKq6O0Ys--4s7jIomxYsMlSFnSZxlNGb8V7z6TLCIYntir6XIn0JJzDjH7GevJOdwBOookr8h8zme-pLKRE7k6SwjH35s5YnwqOz5MDuFiJhBel5olvwND3CtXagyj_ZP5ozbhfgloLq9UCxKPNyi7BeFuDiUbBrhS7jLGZ22Y=&c=BUQdTYZTJAvB1bQXc3TTG8X7gbUtKrkmHMMcshgFT_JH2DTZ0-grvw==&ch=D3Hu-qyA9pVPC727wuY_zFWMbZrUkxX7Ckq9bRbSpOtJAV-t74Yi1w==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001d373vXsJerwK1_pUuijcf9ggM_zv3KaG7-LMWAczCqr7--qgVBebTalaLYTu6tQYxKTHmG1cjpdDedbhppFNePaR2rqvK8rtAYuewA3l1S1dRF6Qk7Ak0ptg02wU-ERJVQKhJXiZ-prtVocBj3-Nx2UZrwsc565aqoc9hG7knvyBA5fcUklNEJV8dAzR-QrfaiDaBMrD-q5PTpU9DAwgYiC8eEpjCA-bx4PofyKNos4=&c=BUQdTYZTJAvB1bQXc3TTG8X7gbUtKrkmHMMcshgFT_JH2DTZ0-grvw==&ch=D3Hu-qyA9pVPC727wuY_zFWMbZrUkxX7Ckq9bRbSpOtJAV-t74Yi1w==
mailto:sarah.bridge@achd.org
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001d373vXsJerwK1_pUuijcf9ggM_zv3KaG7-LMWAczCqr7--qgVBebTalaLYTu6tQY7EqF8yEEBw9BHhuIhR983-89BD5UPfVzRhLX35xii8ltr5w3BhplGLe6o5-xAqLdI5hyEGM5DDUHIft9BS2-bg==&c=BUQdTYZTJAvB1bQXc3TTG8X7gbUtKrkmHMMcshgFT_JH2DTZ0-grvw==&ch=D3Hu-qyA9pVPC727wuY_zFWMbZrUkxX7Ckq9bRbSpOtJAV-t74Yi1w==

Register Here

If you have already registered for Leadership Academy and need to reserve your
hotel room at the Embassy Suites Sacramento, please click here. After January
29th attendees will no longer be able to reserve rooms at our discounted group
rate.

The Association of California Healthcare Districts (ACHD) represents Healthcare Districts throughout the
state's urban, suburban and rural areas. California is home to 79 Healthcare Districts that play a profound role
in responding to the specialized health needs of local communities by providing access to essential health
services to tens of millions of Californians while also having direct accountability to the communities that
Districts serve. In many areas, Healthcare Districts are the sole source of health, medical and well-being
services in their communities.

Learn more at www.achd.org.

Association of California Healthcare Districts

www.achd.org
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Dec 31, 2019 Valley Springs Health Wellness Center
Quality Report
A B C D E F G
1 |Quality Metric' Oct-19 19-Nov| Dec-19 Jan-20
2
3 |Patient Visits Total 383 100% 385 456 100%
4 Medi-Cal |75 20% 76 150 33%
5 Medicare|161 42% 147 132 29%
6 Cash Pay|12 3% 18 19 4%
7 Other|135 35% 144 155 34%
8
9 |Total Empanelled Patients 383 414 620
10
11 [Total New Patients 383 152 167
12
13 |Incident Reports 0 0
14
15 |Patient Satisfaction Pending 100%
16
17 [Peer Review/Fallouts Pending 03
18
19 |Employee turnover 1/8 12.50% 25%
20
21 [Wait time for appointments |0 0
22
23 |Patient No-shows 7 1.80% 26 43 9%
24
25 [Employee Satisfaction No data No data
26
27
28 [1=All Financial data in Finance Report
29 [3=Minor discrepancies

25



MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
RURAL HEALTH CLINICS
POLICY AND PROCEDURES

POLICY: Medical Staff Composition

REVIEWED: 12/26/19

SECTION: Medical Staff

REVISED:

EFFECTIVE: January Board Meeting

MEDICAL DIRECTOR:

Subject: Medical Staff Composition

Objective: It is the policy of this facility to maintain minimum staffing requirements, including practitioner
mix, consistent with Rural Health Clinic Program requirements.

Response Rating:
Required Equipment:

Procedure:

1. The Medical Staff will be led by a physician, MD or DO, under contract with the Clinic, licensed and in
good standing with the State of California Medical Board who meets the organization’s credentialing
requirements and provides care to patients of the Clinic.

2. The Medical Staff willinclude, at minimum, one Family Nurse Practitioner or Physician Assistant,
employed by the District, licensed and in good standing with the State of California who meets the
organization’s credentialing requirements and who provides primary care to patients of the Clinic.

3. Additional members of the Medical Staff may include:

a.Primary care physicians (MD and/or DO) under contract with the Clinic, including Family Practice,
Pediatrics, Internal Medicine, OB/GYN, general medicine licensed and in good standing with the
State of California authorities responsible for oversight who meet the organization’s credentialing

requirements.

b. Specialty practitioners (MD, DO, DC, DPM, DDS) under contract with the Clinic who are licensed and
in good standing with the State of California authorities responsible for oversight who meet the
organization’s credentialing requirements. Specialties may include, but are not limited to:
radiology, surgery, cardiology, dermatology, mental health, podiatry, chiropractic, dentistry.

c. Licensed Clinical Social Workers who are licensed and in good standing with the State of California
authorities responsible for oversight who meet the organization’s credentialing requirements.
Licensed Clinical Social Workers may be under contract with the Clinic or may be employed.

d. Physical Therapists and Exercise Physiologists who are licensed and in good standing with the State of
California authorities responsible for oversight who meet the organization’s credentialing requirements.
Physical Therapists and Exercise Physiologists may be under contract or employed by the Clinic.
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MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
RURAL HEALTH CLINICS
POLICY AND PROCEDURES

POLICY: Infection Control - Overview REVIEWED: 3/1/19
SECTION: Infection Control REVISED:
EFFECTIVE: 3/27/19 MEDICAL DIRECTOR:

Subject: Infection Control

Objective: Staff will follow infection control policies in order to protect themselves and others from
contaminated materials.

Response Rating: Severe

Required Equipment:

Procedure
1. Hands
a. Each examination room will have soap and/or alcohol-based gel hand sanitizer which will to be
used before and after the care of each patient.
2. Instruments
a. Instruments are to be sent to the lab area for sterilization.
b. Single use implements are to be properly disposed of after single use. Single use implements
will never be sterilized and re-used.
3. Thermometers
a. The oral digital thermometer will be marked ORAL and used with disposable plastic covers,
orally, only.
b. The rectal digital thermometer will be marked RECTAL and used with disposable plastic covers,
rectally, only
c. The temporal scan thermometer will be sanitized between uses, per manufacturer’s
recommendation.
4, Room cleaning
a. Routine cleaning is the responsibility of the Housekeeping Service.

Infection Control Overview
Policy Number 89
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b. The Clinic staff is responsible for the cleaning of examination tables and door handles with a
germicidal solution after each patient visit and after any spills or contamination.

Contaminated Materials and Garbage Collection

a. Contaminated materials shall be red-bagged and transported to the infectious material pick-up
area.
b. Non-contaminated materials are to be placed in plastic bags to be picked up by Housekeeping

Service each day.

Biologicals

a. Biologicals will be stored in the refrigerator located in the medication room or laboratory.

b. Dated materials are to be checked once a month and discarded according to the Sterile Shelf
Life policy.

Syringes and Needles

a. Syringes and needles shall be of disposable material and discarded in appropriate sharps
containers located in each examination room and lab area.

Contaminated Wounds

a. All cases are to be treated as having been possibly contaminated.

b. Disposable materials will be wrapped and placed in an infectious waste bag.

c. The infectious waste bag shall be disposed of according to the procedure for Contaminated
Materials.

Airborne Pathogens

a. Patients who are coughing and/or sneezing will be offered a disposable mask and asked to wear
same, in order to reduce exposure of other patients, guests and staff members.

b. After patient care has been completed and the patient has vacated the examination room,
assigned staff will don gloves and clean the room surfaces (door knobs, examination table,
guest chairs, counter top).

Infection Control Overview
Policy Number 89
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N95 masks will be utilized when the patient presents with symptoms of infectious diseases that
require airborne precautions (i.e.: HIN1, flu, tuberculosis).

Staff will utilize the cleaning products approved by the Infection Control Committee and issued
by the Housekeeping Service. After cleaning is completed, the room will be taken out of service
(for a minimum of 15 minutes, maximum of 60 minutes), allowing the damp surfaces to air dry.

Where possible, examination room windows will be opened to allow the circulation of fresh air.

Hard surfaces

Floors will be swept and mopped daily utilizing approved disinfectant agents which will be mixed/diluted CFormatted: Not Highlight

per manufacturer’s guidance.

The Clinic will not utilize carpet in Patient Care areas. Carpets found in non-Patient Care areas will be ) (Formatted: Not Highlight

shampooed with approved disinfectant agents as required by traffic and wear, but not less often than

every six months, unless the area in question is a low traffic office space.

Infection Control Overview
Policy Number 89
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MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
RURAL HEALTH CLINICS
POLICY AND PROCEDURES

POLICY: Registering Patient Complaints REVIEWED: 2/1/19;12/26.19
SECTION: Operations REVISED: 12/26/19
EFFECTIVE: January Board Meeting MEDICAL DIRECTOR:

(Deleted: 2/27/19

Subject: Patient complaints

Objective: To give consideration of all complaints and concerns and correct processes that are problematic, all
patient complaints and concerns will be addressed in a timely manner.

Response Rating:

Required Equipment: Clinic patient complaint form; patient. complaint forms provided by payor groups

)
)

Procedure:
1. Patient complaint regarding billing
a. Patients will be given access to the appropriate patient complaint forms and advised/assisted in
the completion and submission of said form.
b. The registration staff will explain the charges and insurance billing procedure.
[ If patient concerns are not resolved to the patient’s satisfaction, the patient will be referred to ( Deleted: b
the Clinic Manager or their designee for further breakdown of charges.
d. If patient concerns are not resolved to the patient’s satisfaction, the patient will be referred to « CFormatted= Indent: Left: 0.5", No bullets or numbering
the Chief Executive Office for problem resolution. ’ ( Deleted: Executive Director
2. Patient complaint regarding services rendered
a. Patients'will be given access to the appropriate patient complaint forms and advised/assisted in
the completion and submission of said form.
b. The registration staff will refer patient and complaint to the Clinic Manager who will review and

explain services rendered and attempt to resolve the patient’s complaint.

Registering Patient Complaints
Policy Number 151
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[ If the patient is not satisfied with the Clinic Manager’s explanation, the patient and their } ( Deleted: b

complaint will be referred to the attending physician or mid-level provider for review and

recommendation for resolution.

d. If the patient is not satisfied with this explanation, the patient will be referred to the Executive <« (Formatted= Indent: Left: 0.5", No bullets or numbering
Director for further discussion.
e, All patient complaints are to be routed to the Clinic Manager, regardless of their resolution -, (Formatted= Font: 12 pt
status, so that the Clinic Manager can review complaints and determine whether changes in “(__ Deleted: birector
clinic operations are required,, \ (Formatted: Font: 12 pt
. ) ) ) . X : e (Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.5"
f, Complaints will be included in the QAPI meeting agenda and addressed in that venue. -

Patient complaint regarding Section 504 issues

a. Refer to Section 504 Grievance policy

Patients will have access to the Patient Grievance forms specific to their insurance carrier. Upon

request, these forms will be provided to the patient.

3 ( Deleted:

L ‘(Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0.5", No bullets or
. (_.numbering

(Formatted: Font: 12 pt

N AN N ANANA

Patient grievances will be analyzed and trends identified as part of the Clinic Annual Review process

with findings and recommendations shared with the leadership team.

Patients are requested to contact Clinic Manager, the Clinic’s accreditation agency should they have a

complaint or grievance. Clinic Manager can be reach by telephone at 209-772-7070 or via the internet

via https://www.mthcd.org/valley-springs-health-wellness-center.

Registering Patient Complaints
Policy Number 151
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MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
RURAL HEALTH CLINICS
POLICY AND PROCEDURES

POLICY: Sterile Supplies and Instruments REVIEWED: 2/1/19;12/26/19
SECTION: Operations REVISED: 12/26/19
EFFECTIVE: January Board Meeting MEDICAL DIRECTOR: (Deleted: 2/27/19 )
Subject: Sterile supplies and implements
Objective: To maintain sterility of sterile supplies and instruments in an effort to prevent infection.
Response Rating: Mandatory
Required Equipment:
Procedure:
1. Sterile supplies and instruments will be kept in a space separate from soiled supplies and instruments ( Deleted: 1.

and will be stored in appropriate cabinets and shelving. Items will never be store on the floor.

h (Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 12 pt

(Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 12 pt

AN A NN

2. Sterile supplies and instruments will be checked monthly and before each use to insure the package Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
H 7 it Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
integrity and expiration date. Aligned at: 0" + Indent at- 0.5"
R . . . i L . (Formatted: Font: (Default) Calibri, 12 pt
3 Supplies that are in the manufacturer’s packaging will be considered sterile in accordance with the (Deleted. "
packaged expiration date and/or printed information if package integrity has been maintained.
4 Supplies or equipment whose package integrity has been breached will be replaced, re-sterilized, or (Deleted: 3 )
disposed of in accordance with manufacturer’s recommendation and OSHA regulations.
5 Staff will perform sterilization of re-usable implements on site, using the autoclave. (Deleted: 4 )
6, Sterile instruments and supplies autoclaved on site will observe the following expiration guidelines: (Deleted: 5 )
a. Paper wrap — 3 months
b. Cloth wrap — 3 months
c. Cellophane pouches which are tape-sealed — 90 days
7, Any damage or break in packaging is cause for re-sterilization of the item. (Deleted= 6 )
8, Packages will be labeled prior to sterilization with the label including: (Deleted= 7 )

a. Description of package contents
b. Date of sterilization

Sterile Supplies and Instruments
Policy Number 180
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Lo

c. Month, day, and year of expiration (i.e.: exp 7/11/18)
d. Initials of staff member performing sterilization

Every use of the autoclave will be logged on the autoclave log and will include:

(Deleted: 8

Date and time of sterilization

What was sterilized

Cycle used

Name of staff member performing sterlization

o0 oo

Sterile Supplies and Instruments

Policy Number 180
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MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

RURAL HEALTH CLINICS
POLICY AND PROCEDURES

| POLICY: Policy Development and Review

REVIEWED: 11/12/18;12/26/19

| SECTION: Operations

REVISED: 12/26/19

| EFFECTIVE: January Board Meeting

MEDICAL DIRECTOR:

(Deleted: 1/30/19

Subject: Policy development and review

Objective: To ensure prompt, collaborative development, and review of Clinic policies to define appropriate
management, operation, and patient safety.

Response Rating:
Required Equipment:
Procedure

Policy Development

1. Clinic will develop policies as required
a. By licensing agencies
b. By accreditation bodies
c. By payor groups and/or when required by contract
d. By organization leadership
e. Toresolve operational or patient safety issues
f.  When patient care service lines are added
2. Policies will be drafted using the approved Policy Template.
3. Policies will be developed with collaboration between leadership (Executive Director, Medical Director,

Clinic Director, Department Head), clinicians (Physician, Dentist, Mid-level Practitioner, Nurse Midwife,
Nurse), line staff (Medical Assistant, Receptionist, Biller/Coder).

4. Policies will be drafted and submitted for approval by the Medical Director.

5. Policy Manual will be submitted to the Board for approval, with of new and revised policies reviewed <«
monthly and unchanged policies reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure the entire manual is reviewed

(Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.5"

and edited once every two years,

( Deleted: 1/12

a. The Board may, at its discretion, delegate responsibility for review and oversight of the Clinic
Policy Manual to the Executive Director.

Policy Development and Review
Policy Number 137

C Deleted:

( Deleted: annually

NN AN
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Policy Review

1.

2.

New Clinic policies will be submitted for approval to the Medical Director at the time they are written.

Policy Manual will be reviewed by the Clinic Manager and at least one Mid-Level Practitioner on an
annual basis, with changes being made as required.

When a policy is written, the date will be documented in the policy development documentation block
located in the header of the policy.

When a policy is revised, the date of the revision will be documented in the policy development
documentation block located in the header of the policy.

When a policy is reviewed with no changes, the date of the review will be documented in the policy
development documentation block located in the header of the policy.

When a policy is approved, the date of the approval will be documented in the policy development
documentation block located in the header of the policy. The Medical Director approving the policy
will initial the original paper document in the designated signature block.

When the policy is discontinued, the discontinuation date will be documented in the policy
development documentation block located in the header of the policy. All discontinued policies will be
retained in a file labeled “Retired Clinic Policies” and the file will be retained in perpetuity.

The Policy Manual Approval document shall be updated on a regular basis, signed by the Clinic
Manager, Mid-Level Practitioners(s) who participated in the review, the Medical Director, and

( Deleted: annual

members of the Board.

Policy Development and Review
Policy Number 137
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MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
RURAL HEALTH CLINICS

POLICY AND PROCEDURES
POLICY: Influenza A and B Test - Waived REVIEWED: 12/27/19
SECTION: Waived Testing REVISED:
EFFECTIVE: January Board Meeting MEDICAL DIRECTOR:

Subject: Influenza A and B testing using OSOM Ultra Flu A & B waived testing kit
Objective: Accurate, timely point-of-care testing to determine patient’s Influenza A and B status
Response Rating:

Required Equipment: Gloves, Influenza A and B test kit, timer

Procedure:
1. Follow test kit components according to manufacturer requirements

a. Store test sticks and extraction reagent at room temperature (59 — 80 degrees F)

b. Do not freeze any of the test kit components:

C. Do not use test sticks and reagents after expiration date.

e. Test sticks that have been outside of the desiccated container for more than 1 hour should be
discarded.

2. Don gloves.
3. Collect a specimen.

a. Only nasal swabs can be used with this test.

b. Insert the test swab into the nostril that appears to have the most secretion. Using a gentle
rotation, push the swab until resistance is met at the level of the turbinates (at least one inch
into the nostril). Rotate the swab a few times against the nasal wall.

C. Use only the swabs supplies in the OSOM Influenza A & B Test kit. Swabs from other suppliers

have not been validated for use. Do not use swabs that have cotton, rayon, or polyester or
wooden shafts.
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d. Test the swab as soon as possible after collecting the specimen. If swabs cannot be processed
immediately, specimens may be held at room temperature for no longer than eight (8) hours.
Swabs may also be stored at 36-46 degrees F for up to 24 hours.

e. To transport patient samples place swab in clean, dry container such as a plastic or glass tube.
f. If a culture result is desired, a separate swab must be collected for the culture.
g. The test performance depends on the quality of the sample obtainedas well as the handling

and transport of the sample. Negative results can occur from inadequate specimen collection
and/or handling.

4, Perform the test
a. Add extraction buffer
1. Tear the top off the Extraction Reagent Capsule and dispense entire contents into the

Extraction Well.

b. Insert the specimen swab in the Swab Stand
1. Spin swab three (3) times to mix the specimen
2. Let stand one (1) minute
3. Spin swab three (3) times again
C. Discard the swab
1. Raise the device upright and let stand 1-2 seconds
2. Gently tap device to ensure the liquid flows into the hole
3. Lay the device back down
d. Set the timer for ten (10) minutes
e. Read results
1. Read the results in 10-15 minutes
2. Confirm negative results at 15 minutes
2. Refer to Result Interpretation Guide or stick diagram in the OSOM literature for help in

reading the test stick.

3. Discard used test components in suitable biohazardous waste container.
g. Record results in EMR and advise the ordering provider that results are available.
5. In the event the usual OSOM waived testing kit is not available, review and follow the directions

provided by the manufacturer.
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MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
RURAL HEALTH CLINICS

POLICY AND PROCEDURES
POLICY: Waived Testing CoaguChek XS PT REVIEWED: 1/5/20
SECTION: Waived Testing REVISED:
EFFECTIVE: January Board Meeting MEDICAL DIRECTOR:

Subject: INR testing using CoaguChek XS PTwaived testing kit

Objective: Accurate, timely point-of-care testing to determine quantitive prothrombin time testing for
monitoring warfarin therapy using fresh capillary or nonanticoagulated venous whole blood.

Response Rating:

Required Equipment: CoaguChek MS meter, gloves, test strip, test strip code chip, lancet, alcohol swap, dot
bandaid

Procedure:

1. Test strips are to be stored in their original container with the cap tightly closed. They may be stored at
room temperature or in the refrigerator (2-30 degrees C.or 36-86 degrees F.

2. Discard test strips that are past their expiration date.

3. Gather supplies as listed above.

4. If using test strips from a new, unopened box, you must change the test strip code chip. The 3-number
code on the test strip container must match the 3-number code on the code chip. Refer to the User
Manual to correctly install the Code Chip.

5. <Ensure the meteris on a flat surface (counter, table, or hold it in a horizontal position so that it will not
vibrate or move during testing.

6. Wipe the patient’s finger with alcohol. Allow the patient’s finger to dry completely before performing the
fingerstick.

7. Take a test strip out of the container and close the container tightly.
8. Insert the test strip as far as you can. The meter will then power on.

9. Confirm that the number displayed matches the number on the test strip container, then press M. If the
numbers are different, make sure you are using the code chip that came with the test strips you are using.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

An hourglass flashes as the meter warms the test strip, which takes up to 30 seconds.

When the test strip is warmed, a flashing test strip and blood drop symbol appear and the meter begins a
countdown. You have 180 seconds to apply blood to the test strip.

Using the lancet and appropriate technique, obtain a good drop of blood from the patient’s fingertip.

Apply one (1) drop of blood to the top or side of the target area. You must apply blood to the test strip
with 15 seconds of lancing the finger and within 30 seconds when using venous blood. Applying blood
later than that may produce an inaccurate result as the coagulation process will have begun.

Do not add more blood. Do not touch or remove the test strip when a test is in progress. The flashing
blood drop symbol changes to an hourglass symbol when the meter detects sufficient samples. If he
meter’s beeper is turned on, a beep sounds as well.

The result appears in about a minute. Record the result.
Properly dispose of the lancet and test strip.
Power the meter off.

Perform QC per the manufacturer’s guidelines.
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MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
RURAL HEALTH CLINICS

POLICY AND PROCEDURES
POLICY: Waived Testing Hemoglobin A1C REVIEWED: 12/27/19
SECTION: Waived Testing REVISED:
EFFECTIVE: January Board Meeting MEDICAL DIRECTOR:

Subject: Waived Testing using the A1C Now Professional for Hemoglobin A1C

Objective: Testing of blood specimens for the purpose of determining the patient’s Hemoglobin A1C level will
be performed in the Clinic using approved waived testing technologies and techniques, a A1C Now
Professional analyzer.

Response Rating: Mandatory

Required Equipment: A1C Now Analyzer, A1C Now Hemoglobin A1C Reagent Kit, lint-free tissue, gloves,
cotton ball/gauze 2x2, dot bandaid,

Procedure:

1. Store the kits in temperatures below 122 degrees F.in the designated laboratory up to four (4) months
prior to use.
a. Ifthe temperature label, place on the outside of every kit, is exposed to a temperature in excess of

122 degrees.F the dot on the label will turn red and the product should not be used.

b. Run the rest with all parts of the test kit at the same temperature whtin the specified range.

c. If the kit has recently been at high temperatures (above 82 degrees F) or in the refrigerator, keep
the kit at room temperature for at least one hour before use.

d. Avoid running the trest in direct sunlight, on hot or cold surgaces, or near sources of heat or cold.

e. Quality control materials should be used to confirm the test kit is working properlty. Refer to the
product.insert for information on when to run controls.

f. Use analyzer only with the materials included in the original kit. The analyzer will expire after the
programmed number of tests have been run. If antoerh test cartridge is inserted, the analyzer will
display “00TL".

2. Upon receipt of a written order or by Standardized procedure, a capillary blood specimen will be

collected and tested to determine the patient’s Hemoglobin A1C level.

a.

b.

C.

Open plastic shaker pouch by tearing plastic pouch open at the performation line.

Collect blood using the fingerstick method and available lancets, then utilize the blood collector
and fill just to the top of the collection tube.

Fully insert the blood collector into the shaker body. You may use a twisting motion.
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k.

d. Mix the specimen bu shaking the shaker body vigorously 6-8 times which will mix the
blood with the testing solution. Stand the shaker on the counter while preparing the cartridge.

Open the foil cartridge pouch by tearing at the notches on the sides.
DO NOT OPEN the pouch until you are ready to use it immediately. Use within 2 minutes of
opening. If the foil pouch is damaged, do not use.

Insert the cartridge by clicking the est cartridge into place. The analyzer and test cartridge
codes must match. If codes do not match, call Customer Service at 1-877-870-5610.

Prepare the shaker base by removing it from the package. Wait for WMPL to display. This
indicates the shaker base is ready for the shaker.

Dispense the sample into the cartridge. Ensure the analyzer is on a level surface. Push down
completely to dispense the diluted sample. Then remove quickly. DO NOT handle the analyzer
again until the test is complete.

Results will display in five (5) minutes. The display counts down. The result cycle remains
displayed for 15 minutes or unil the next test cartridge is inserted.

Dispose of the cartridge in an approved biohazard bin.

Record results in the patient’s medical record.

Between uses, the analyzer may be sanitized using a Super Sani Wipe.

Quality control must-be performed:

a.

b.

With each new shipment
With each new lot
Whenever problems are identified (storage, operator, instrument, or other)

To ensure that storage conditions have not affected the product, run a control sample before
running a patient sample if the test kit has been stored for more than a month and it has been
at least @ month since the last control testing.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30, 2019

The management of the Mark Twain Health Care District (the District) has prepared this annual discussion and
analysis in order to provide an overview of the District’s performance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 in
accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financials Statements;
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments. The intent of this document is to provide
additional information on the District’s financial performance as a whole in addition to providing a prospective look
at revenue growth, operating expenses, and capital development plans. This discussion should be reviewed in
conjunction with the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 and accompanying notes
to the financial statements to enhance one’s understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Financial Highlights

The District’s financial statements consist of three statements: balance sheet; statement of revenues, expenses, and
changes in net position; and statement of cash flows. These financial statements and related notes provide
information about the activities of the District, including resources held by the District but restricted for specific
purposes by contributors, grantors, or enabling legislation.

The balance sheet includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities, using the accrual basis of accounting, as well
as an indication about which assets can be used for general purposes and which are designated for a specific purpose.

Highlights within the balance sheet for the year ended June 30, 2019 were:

(1) Total assets increased by $10,342,853 due mainly to the minority interest payment by Dignity in conjunction with
the new lease agreement signed towards the end of the year for the leasing of the Hospital facilities;

(2) Cash and cash equivalents increased by $14,264,587, again due to the reason mentioned above. Cash inflows
totaled a net $596,851 from operations. Net property and purchases were $3,790,363 towards the construction of a
new rural health clinic in Valley Springs;

(3) Other receivables increased by $79,335 as property taxes increased by 85,656 for the year;
(4) Property and equipment increased by $3,767,172 due to the construction-in-progress additions 0f $3,790,363 as
previously mentioned, less depreciation expense of $23,191. The clinic is scheduled for completion in the fall of

2019, at which time the District will begin rural health care clinic operations in Valley Springs.

(5) Debt borrowings were $3,846,784 representing draws on the USDA loan used to fund the construction of the new
rural health clinic in Valley Springs.

(6) Due to the new 30-year lease agreement, the District recorded approximately $6.8 million in other assets, offset
by approximately $6 million in deferred revenues, all associated with the 30 year leasing of the Hospital facilities

by Dignity.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position reports all of the revenues earned and expenses
incurred during the time period indicated. Net position (the difference between total assets and total liabilities) is
one way to measure the financial health of the District.

Highlights within the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2019
were:

(1) An excess of operating revenues over operating expenses of $643,896 as compared to the prior year increase of
$473,244. Operating revenues were $1,733,270 (an increase of $188,225 over the prior year) while operating
expenses were $1,052,416 (a decrease of $19,385 over the prior year);

(2) A $36,958 net loss in the combined lease and other i(xtgrest in Mark Twain Medical Center for the year ended
June 30, 2019 as compared to the 2018 loss of $587,223.

The statement of cash flows reports the cash provided by and used by the District’s operating activities, as well as
other cash sources such as investment income and cash payments for capital additions and improvements. This
statement provides meaningful information on how the District’s cash was generated and how it was used during the
fiscal year.

Cash and Investments

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the District’s operating cash and investments totaled $16,123,892 as
compared to $1,859,305 in fiscal year 2018. At June 30, 2019, days cash on hand were 5,794 as compared to June
30, 2018 when days cash on hand were 649. Again, the large increase was due to the Dignity payment of the
accumulative minority interest as previously mentioned. The District maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalent
balances to pay all short-term liabilities, plus fund the forthcoming operations of the new rural health clinic.

Current Assets and Liabilities
Current assets increased by $14,327,321 due mainly to the previously mentioned increase in cash and cash

equivalents. Current liabilities decreased by $47,827. These changes produced a current ratio of 86.23 for June 30,
2019 as compared to 8.61 for June 30, 2018.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Capital and Other Assets

- Property and equipment increased by $3,767,172 as additions were $3,790,363, less depreciation expense of $23,191.
The increase was for the continued capitalized costs of preparing the property in Valley Springs, California for the
new rural health care clinic location.

The District also spent an additional $16,424 in costs towards the lease negotiations for the new long-term lease
with Dignity regarding the leasing of the Mark Twain Medical Center. These costs have been capitalized as an
other asset for an accumulated total of $357,567 as of June 30,2019. Amortization of these costs began in June 2019
and will run for 30 years to match the terms of the new lease agreement. In addition and as previously mentioned,
the District recorded approximately $6.8 million in other assets, offset by approximately $6 million in deferred
revenues, all associated with the 30 year leasing of the Hospital facilities by Dignity.

District Revenues and Rental Income

The District receives approximately 65% of its operating support from property taxes. These funds are used to
support operations of the District. They are classified as operating revenue as the revenue is directly linked to the
operations of the District. Property taxes are levied by the County on the District’s behalf during the year, and are
intended to help finance the District’s activities during the same year. Amounts are levied on the basis of the most
current property values on record with the County. Property taxes increased in 2019 by $85,656 from 2018.

The District also rents and/or leases hospital facilities, private office for physicians and land to various entities and
individuals for purposes of supplying healthcare to the residents in the surrounding area. Rental income for the year
ended June 30, 2019 decreased slightly by $32,492 over the previous year due mainly to the termination of monthly
lease payments by Dignity due to the arrangements of the new lease.

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses were $1,052,416 for fiscal year 2019 compared to $1,071,801 for the prior fiscal year. The
decrease is mainly due primarily to:

(1) A $23,477 increase in salaries, wages and employee benefits due to the hiring of new staff coupled with a
decrease in tenant services of $72,662.

(2)A $119,264 decrease in professional fees due to fewer issues the District had to deal with this year.
(3) A $132,033 increase in donations towards community programs.

Other changes were considered minor.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Economic Factors and Next Fiscal Year’s Budget

The District’s board approved the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 budget at a recent 2019 Board meeting. For fiscal
year 2020, the District is budget has the following assumptions:

Property taxes were budgeted at the approximately the same levels of 2019 while rents increase.

Professional fees and other operating expenses are expected to remain fairly consistent for the year as compared
to 2019

As noted already, the District is in process of building a new rural health care clinic in Valley Springs which it plans

on operating upon completion. Planning is underway both for the completion of the building and for the operations
of the clinic which will start during fiscal year 2020.
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JWT & Associates, LLP

A Certified Public Accountancy Limited Liability Partnership
1111 East Herndon Avenue, Suite 211, Fresno, California 93720
Voice: (559) 431-7708 Fax: (559) 431-7685 Email: rjctcpa@aol.com

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Mark Twain Health Care District
San Andreas, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Mark Twain Health Care District, (the District) which
comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in the California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 1131.2 State
Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts . Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the District at June 30,2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Supplementary Information

Management’s discussion and analysis is not a required part of the financial statements but is supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement

and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

QW7 & Associates, LLP

Fresno, California
January 21, 2020
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Balance Sheets

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Total current assets

Propérty and equipment
Interest in Mark Twain Medical Center
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Due to Mark Twain Medical Center
Total current liabilities

Deferred lease revenue
Debt borrowings
Total liabilities

Net position
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted net position

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes and auditor’s report

June 30
—2019 2018

$ 16,123,892 $ 1,859,305
249,757 170,422
16,601
16,373,649 2,046,328
5,656,144 1,888,972
287,693 14,840,434
7.144.295 343,194
$29,461.,781 $19.118.928
$§ 175,862 $ 173,266
14,019 16,984
- 47438
189,881 237,708

5,900,000

3,846,784

9,936,665
1,809,360 1,888,972
17,715,756 16,992,248
19.525.116 18.881.220
$29.461.781 $19,118,928
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Operating revenues:
District taxes
Rental income
Interest and other income
Total revenues, gains and losses

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and administrative benefits
Professional fees
Donations
Programs and events
Tenant services
Medical office building rent
Utilities and phone
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Other operating expenses

Total expenses

Excess of revenues over expenses

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Gain (loss) in interest in Mark Twain Medical Center

Increase (decrease) in net position
Net position at the beginning of the year
Net position at the end of the year

See accompanying notes and auditor’s report 8

Year Ended June 30
2019 2018
$ 1,085,099 $ 999,443
506,118 538,610
142,053 6.992
1,733,270 1,545,045
259,670 236,193
213,023 332,287
132,033 41,925
26,768 5,488
72,662
231,983 226,237
29,133
19,157 17,043
2,444 57,593
36,578 26,582
101,627 55,791
1,052,416 1,071,801
680,854 473,244
(36.958) (587.223)
643,896 (113,979)
18.881.220 18,995,199
$19.525,116 $18.881,220
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Statements of Cash Flows

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from district taxes
Cash received from rental & other activities
Cash paid for salaries, wages and administrative benefits
Cash paid for suppliers and outside vendors
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing and investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Proceeds from debt borrowings
Increase in deferred revenues
Interest income
Change in other assets
Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of changes in net position to net cash
provided by operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net position to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
District tax and other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Due to Mark Twain Medical Center
Net cash provided by operating activities

Year Ended June 30
_ 2019 _20i8
$ 1,090,001 $ 1,006,790
374,423 459,073
(262,635) (228,601)
(604.938) (815.404)
596,851 421,858
(3,790,363) (245,158)
3,846,784
5,900,000
142,053
7.569.262 (73.998)
13,667,736 (319.156)
14,264,587 102,702
1,859,305 1,756,603
$16,123.892 $ 1.859.305
$ 680,854 $ 473,244
26,558 26,582
(79,335) 25,119
16,601 7,867
2,596 (86,907)
(2,965) 7,592
(47.458) (31,639)
$ 596.851 $ 421,858

52



Notes to Financial Statements
MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30, 2019

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity: Mark Twain Health Care District (the District) is a tax-exempt political subdivision of the State
of California operating under the California Health and Safety Code and is governed by a five-member elected Board
of Directors. The District was organized in 1946, and began operating a healthcare facility located in San Andreas,
California, in 1951.

In 1989, the District arranged with St. Joseph’s Regional Health System (SJRHS), who later became Catholic Health
Care West (CHW), who then renamed to Dignity Health (DH) (a California-based not-for-profit public benefit
corporation) to manage the District-owned Mark Twain Hospital, which later became known as the Mark Twain
Medical Center Corporation (the Corporation). DH entered into an agreement with the District at that time to lease
the Corporation under the “1989 Lease”. During fiscal year 2019, a new lease was entered into with DH as more
fully described in Footnote H.

The Corporation’s Board of Trustees is appointed by the District and DH whereby DH appoints three members of
the seven-member Corporation Board of Trustees and holds significant reserve powers. In the event ofits dissolution,
the Corporation’s bylaws require that its net position be divided equally between the District and DH.

Basis of Preparation: The accounting policies and financial statements of the District generally conform with the
recommendations of the audit and accounting guide, Health Care Organizations, published by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The financial statements are presented in accordance with the pronouncements of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). For presentation purposes, transactions deemed to be
ongoing and central to providing health care services are reported as operational revenues and expenses.

The District uses enterprise fund accounting. Revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis using the
economic resources measurement focus. Based on GASB Statement Number 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, as
amended, the District has elected to apply the provisions of all relevant pronouncements as the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB), including those issued after November 30, 1989, that do not conflict with or contradict
GASB pronouncements.

Changes in Financial Statement Presentation: The District has adopted the provisions of GASB 34, Basic F inancial
Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments (Statement 34), as
amended by GASB 37, Basic Financial Statements - and Management'’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and
Local Governments: Onmibus, and Statement 38, Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures. Statement 34
established financial reporting standards for all state and local governments and related entities. Statement 34
primarily relates to presentation and disclosure requirements. The impact of this change was related to the format
of the financial statements; the inclusion of management’s discussion and analysis; and the preparation of the
statement of cash flows on the direct method. The application of these accounting standards had no impact on the
total net position.

10

53



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
results of operations for the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Risk Management: To cover the District against various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and employee
health, dental, and accidental benefits, commercial insurance coverage is purchased.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments: The District considers cash and cash equivalents to include certain
investments in highly liquid debt instruments, when present, with an original maturity of a short-term nature or
subject to withdrawal upon request. Exceptions are for those investments which are intended to be continuously
invested. Investments in debt securities are reported at market value. Interest, dividends and both unrealized and
realized gains and losses on investments are included as investment income in nonoperating revenues when earned.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are reported on the basis of cost, or in the case of donated items,
on the basis of fair market value at the date of donation. Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense
as incurred. Expenditures which increase values, change capacities, or extend useful lives are capitalized.
Depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of property under capital leases are computed by the
straight-line method for both financial reporting and cost reimbursement purposes over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, which range from 5 to 40 years for buildings and improvements, and 5 to 20 years for equipment.

Net Position: Net position, under the new GASB requirements, are to be presented in three categories. The first
category is net position “invested in capital assets, net of related debt”. This category of net position consists of
capital assets (both restricted and unrestricted), net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
principal balances of any debt borrowings that were attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those capital assets. The second category is “restricted” net position. This category consists of externally designated
constraints placed on certain assets by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, law or
regulations of other governments or government agencies, or law or constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
The third category is “unrestricted” net position. This category consists of the net position that does not meet the
definition or criteria of the prev1ous two categories. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District is only required to
present unrestricted net position in the presentation of the financial statements as there are no restrictions present
under category one or two.

Statements of Cash Flows: For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

District Tax Revenues: The District receives approximately 65% of its operating support from property taxes. These
funds are used to support operations of the District. They are classified as operating revenue as the revenue is
directly linked to the operations of the District. Property taxes are levied by the County on the District’s behalf
during the year, and are intended to help finance the District’s activities during the same year. Amounts are levied
on the basis of the most current property values on record with the County. The County has established certain dates
to levy, lien, mail bills, and receive payments from property owners during the year. Property taxes are considered
delinquent on the day following each payment due date.

Grants and Contributions: From time to time, the District may receive grants from various governmental agencies
and private organizations. The District may also receive contributions from related foundation and auxiliary
organizations, as well as from individuals and other private organizations. Revenues from grants and contributions
are recognized when all eligibility requirements, including time requirements are met. Grants and contributions may
be restricted for either specific operating purposes or capital acquisitions. These amounts, when recognized upon
meeting all requirements, are reported as components of the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position.

Operating Revenues and Expenses: The District’s statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
distinguishes only operating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues result from exchange transactions associated
with supporting health care services, which is the District’s principal activity. Operating expenses are all expenses
incurred to support health care services.

NOTE B - BANK DEPOSITS

Collateral: As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the District had deposits invested in a bank of $16,123,892 and
$1,859,305, respectively. All of these funds were held in deposits, which are collateralized in accordance with the
California Government Code (CGC), or federally insured.

Under the provisions of the CGC, California banks and savings and loan associations are required to secure the
District’s deposits by pledging government securities as collateral. The market value of pledged securities must equal
at least 110% of the District’s deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits
by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the District’s total deposits. The pledged
securities are held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department in the name of the District.

Investments , at times, may consist of state and local agency funds invested in various permissible securities and are
stated at quoted market values. Changes in market value between years are reflected as a component of investment
income in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE C - TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

The Corporation provided the District with accounting and administrative services for which the Corporation charged
a fee to cover the salaries and benefits of the personnel. This fee totaled $72,662 for the year ended June 30, 2018.
These services were terminated by the District and replaced with other options during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2019. AtJune 30, 2018, the District had $47,458 in unamortized prepaid rent income resulting from the redemption
of the 1986 Bonds made by the Corporation. During the year ended June 30, 2019, the amortization on this asset was
completed.

The Corporation leases the District’s healthcare facilities in order to conduct patient care services in an acute-care
hospital setting. Lease revenue from the Corporation for the years ended June 30,2019 and 2018 were $232,000 and
$310,039, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2019, a new lease agreement was signed with other
arrangements as further disclosed in Footnote H.

The former hospital facility lease was renegotiated during the year ended June 30,2019. The former lease payments
were initially in amounts adequate to cover payment of utilities, debt service and insurance on the Series 1986A
Bonds not covered by the tax and other revenues of the District, and to maintain ratios and fund accounts pursuant
to the terms of a Joint Obligor Agreement between the District and the Corporation dated December 31, 1989, and
the Bond Indenture dated August 1, 1986, between the District and Harris Trust Company of California, the bond
trustee. As previously mentioned, Footnote H discloses the new lease arrangement.

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the District entered into a land and medical office building lease agreement
with San Andreas Medical and Professional Office Building (SAMPO). The District leases land located at 704
Mountain Ranch Road in San Andreas to SAMPO at no cost due to the fact that the development of the property by
SAMPO was deemed sufficient to offset any future lease payments. SAMPO built and owns the medical office
building (MOB) located on the aforementioned land and then leases the MOB to the District. Lease expense for the
years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 regarding this agreement were $231,983 and $226,237, respectively. The
District has subleased portions of the MOB to the Stockton Cardiology Medical Group and others, and to the
Corporation. Lease revenues under the subleasing arrangements and other arrangements were $211,883 and $219,956
for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE D - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 were comprised of the following:

Land and land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Construction-in-progress
Totals at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land and land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total property and equipment, net

Land and land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Construction-in-progress
Totals at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land and land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total property and equipment, net

Balance at Transfers & Disposals & Balance at
June 30, 2018 Additions Retirements June 30, 2019
$ 1,339,564 $ 1,339,564
4,568,729 4,568,729
698,156 698,156
601,422 3.790.363 4,391,785
7,207,871 3,790,363 10,998,234
(134,397) (2,386) (136,783)
(4,491,517) (19,171) (4,510,688)
(692.985) (1,634) (694.619)
(5.318.899) (23.191) (5.342,090)
$ 1,669,268 $ 219,704 $ $ 5,656,144
Balance at Transfers & Disposals & Balance at
June 30,2017 Additions Retirements June 30,2018
$ 1,339,564 $ 1,339,564
4,568,729 4,568,729
698,156 698,156
356,264 245,158 601,422
6,962,713 245,158 7,207,871
(132,011) (2,386) (134,397)
(4,470,389) (21,128) (4,491,517)
(691.045) (1,940) (692.985)
(5,293.445) (25.454) (5.318.899)
$ 1.669.268 $ 219,704 $ $ 1,669,268
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE E - DEBT BORROWINGS

On August 8, 2018, the District’s Board of Directors adopted Resolution 2018-11 entitling the authorizing and
providing for the incurrence of indebtedness for the purpose of providing a portion of the cost of acquiring,
constructing, enlarging, improving and/or extending its facilities to serve an area lawfully within its jursidiction to
serve. In a lease-leaseback transaction, two Certificates of Participation (COP) were signed. COP Series A allowed
up to $6,782,000 and COP Series B allowed up to $678,000. Details of these borrowings as of June 30, 2019 and
2018, debt borrowings are as follows:

2019 2018

Mark Twain Health Care District Certificates of Participation, Series A

(2018 Capital Improvement Project), original amount up to $6,782,000;

principal payments due to be determined; interest charged at 3.625%;

collateralized by District revenues and other property: $ 3,812,784

Mark Twain Health Care District Certificates of Participation, Series B
(2018 Capital Improvement Project), original amount up to $678,000;
principal payments due to be determined; interest charged at 3.875%;

collateralized by District revenues and other property: 34.000
3,846,784

Less current maturities of debt borrowings -0-
§ 3.846.784

Future principal maturities for debt borrowings for the next succeeding five years have not yet been determined by
the USDA as the project is still under construction and all available funds have not yet been drawn.

On May 1, 1996, the Corporation borrowed $11,175,000 to finance a new health facility and to defease the Mark
Twain Hospital District Insured Revenue Bonds Series 1986A (the Series 1986A Bonds) previously issued by the
District. In exchange for assuming the District’s debt obligation, the Corporation has been granted a prepaid lease
payment to the District that has been recorded as a long-term liability in the accompanying financial statements. The
prepaid rent was being amortized over the life of the former lease agreement with the Corporation. As of result of
the new lease agreement, the prepaid lease payment was terminated during the year ende June 30, 2019.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE F - INTEREST IN MARK TWAIN MEDICAL CENTER

In the former agreement between the Corporation and the District, in the event of a dissolution or a winding up of
the Corporation, 50% of its assets remaining after payment, or provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities of
the Corporation, were to be distributed to Dignity Health, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation. The other
50% would be distributed to the District. As a result of this agreement, the District had recorded $14,480,434 as of
June 30,2018, respectively, as its portion of its interest in the Corporation. This amount represented the 50% of the
net difference between the assets and the liabilities of the Corporation as of its June 30, 2018 audited financial
statements. As of result of the new lease agreement with Dignity Health, this agreement was amended to reduce the
50% interest to 1% for the year ended June 30, 2019, resulting in an interest of $287,693 as of June 30, 2019.

NOTE G - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction-in-Progress: As of JTune 30, 2019 the District has recorded $4,391,785 as construction-in-progress
representing cost capitalized towards the purchase of land and construction of a rural health care clinic in Valley
Springs, California. Future costs to complete this project as of June 30, 2019 is approximately $3,700,000.

Medical Office Building Rent: The District leases various office space under operating leases expiring at various
dates. Total building rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, was $231,983 and $226,237,
respectively. Future minimum lease payments for the succeeding years under these leases as of June 30, 2019, that
have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year are not significant for disclosure.

Litigation: The District may from time-to-time be involved in litigation and regulatory investigations which arise in
the normal course of doing business. After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that matters
existing as of Tune 30, 2019 will be resolved without material adverse effect on the District’s future financial position,
results from operations or cash flows.

Regulatory Environment: The District is subject to several laws and regulations. These laws and regulations include
matters such as licensure, accreditation, government health care program participation requirements, reimbursement
for patient services, and Medicare and Medi-Cal fraud and abuse. Government activity has increased with respect
to possible violations of statues and regulations by health care providers. Violations of these laws and regulations
could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with the imposition of significant fines and
penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed. Management believes that the
District is in compliance with all applicable government laws and regulations and is not aware of any future actions
or unasserted claims at this time.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MARK TWAIN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE H - DIGNITY HEALTH LEASE

On May 31, 2019, the District and Dignity Health (DH) consummated a 30-year lease of the Mark Twain Medical
Center. The final closure entailed 10 different documents: (1) a Prelease Agreement; (2) a Lease Agreement; (3) a
Supplemental Property Agreement; (4) an Equity Transfer Agreement; (5) a Lease Termination Agreement; (6) a
Valley Springs Letter; (7) By-Laws of the MTMC Corporation; (8) By-Laws of the MTMC Community Board; (9)
a Closing and Incumbency Certificate; and (10) aMTMC Third Amended & Restated Articles of Incorporation. Final
accounting entries made for this May 3 1* transaction, as well as the true-up of asset depreciation, have been made
to the records of the District for the year ended June 30, 2019.

As a result of this transaction, the District has recorded a capital lease asset valued at $6,806,628 and has recorded
deferred lease revenue of $6,000,000. The capital lease asset is being amortized over the life of the new lease
agreement of 30 years at $226,884 each year. The deferred lease revenue is a combination of deferred capital lease
income, deferred facility rent and deferred utility expense income and is being recognized as income each year at
various amounts each year.

NOTE I- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The District’s management has evaluated the effect of significant subsequent events on the financial statements

through January 21, 2020, the date the financial statements are issued, and determined that there are no other material
subsequent events that have not been disclosed.
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Mark Twain Health Care District
Direct Clinic Financial Projections

4083.49 Urgent care Gross Revenues
4083.60 Contractual Adjustments
Net Patient revenue

4083.90 Flu shot, Lab income, physicals
4083.91 Medical Records copy fees
4083.92 Other - Plan Incentives

Total Other Revenue

7083.09 Other salaries and wages

7083.10 Payroll taxes
7083.12 Vacation, Holiday and Sick Leave
7083.13 Group Health & Welfare Insurance
7083.14 Group Life Insurance
7083.15 Pension and Retirement
7083.16 Workers Compensation insurance
7083.18 Other payroll related benefits
Total taxes and benefits
Labor related costs

7083.20 Medical - Physicians
7083.22 Consulting and Management fees
7083.23 Legal - Clinic
7083.25 Registry Nursing personnel
7083.26 Other contracted services
7083.29 Other Professional fees
7083.36 Oxygen and Other Medical Gases
7083.38 Pharmaceuticals
7083.41 Other Medical Care Materials and Supplies
7083.44 Linens
7083.48 Instruments and Minor Medical Equipment
7083.74 Depreciation - Equipment
7083.45 Cleaning supplies
7083.62 Repairs and Maintenance Grounds
7083.72 Depreciation - Bidgs & Improvements
7083.80 Utilities - Electrical, Gas, Water, other
8870.00 Interest on Debt Service
7083.43 Food
7083.46 Office and Administrative supplies
7083.69 Other purchased services
7083.81 Insurance - Malpractice
7083.82 Other Insurance - Clinic
7083.85 Telephone and Communications
7083.86 Dues and Subscriptions
7083.87 Outside Training
7083.88 Travel costs
7083.89 Recruiting

Non labor expenses

Total Expenses

Net Expenses over Revenues

15 Rooms
VSHWC
1

2019/2020 Actual Actual Actual
Budget Month Y-T-D  vs Budget
2,097,973 1135 1135 0.00%

34,637

2,063,337 0 0 0.00%
765 0.00%
383 0.00%
15,750 0.00%
16,898 0 0 0.00%
2,080,235 0 0 0.00%
(650,053) (73,859) {176,962) 27.22%
(42,278) (4,055) (12,413) 29.36%
(9,751) 0.00%
(107,259) (923) (2,769) 2.58%
(1,040) 0.00%
(16,251) 0.00%
(13,001) (1,700) 13.08%
(975) 0.00%
(190,555) (4,978) (16,881) 8.86%
(840,608) (78,837) (193,843) 23.06%
(549,564) 21,667 (57,184) 10.41%
(101,250) (21,783) (119,531) 118.06%
0 (1,432) (21,860) 0.00%
(1,875) 0.00%
(84,563) (4,884) (19,266) 22.78%
(5,625) (600) 681 -12.12%
(1,599) (192) (393) 24,57%
(68,513) 0.00%
(10,240) (9,1186) (41,710) 407.32%
(2,048) 0.00%
(11,878) 0.00%
(112,857) 0.00%
(9,896) 0.00%
(5,900) 0.00%
(233,263) 0.00%
{93,253) (6,357) (9,595) 10.29%
(269,494) (60,469) 22.44%
(819) (109) (109) 13.36%
(8,601) (4,272) (12,053) 140.13%
(134,280) (8,506) (25,983) 19.35%
(30,265) (3,000) 9.91%
(23,332) 0.00%
(10,240) (1,158) (1,158) 11.31%
(1,903) (2,491) (3,210) 168.68%
(4,915) (199) 4.05%
(4,0986) (222) (222) 5.41%
(20,177) (11,529) 57.14%
(1,777,114) (39,456) (410,122) 23.08%
(2,617,722) (118,293) (603,965) 23.07%
(537,487) (118,293) (603,965) 112.37%
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Mark Twain Health Care District
General Administration Financial Projections

9060.00 Income, Gains and losses from investments

9160.00 Property Tax Revenues

9010.00 Gain on Sale of Asset

9400.00 Miscellaneous Income (1% Minority Interest)
Summary Revenues

8610.09 Other salaries and wages

8610.10 Payroll taxes
8610.12 Vacation, Holiday and Sick Leave
8610.13 Group Health & Welfare Insurance
8610.14 Group Life Insurance
8610.15 Pension and Retirement
8610.16 Workers Compensation insurance
8610.18 Other payroll related benefits
Benefits and taxes
Labor Costs

8610.22 Consulting and Management Fees
8610.23 Legal
8610.24 Accounting /Audit Fees
8610.43 Food
8610.46 Office and Administrative Supplies
8610.62 Repairs and Maintenance Grounds
8610.69 Other
8610.74 Depreciation - Equipment
8610.75 Rental/lease equipment
8610.80 Utilities
8610.82 Insurance
8610.83 Licenses and Taxes
8610.85 Telephone and communications
8610.86 Dues and Subscriptions
8610.87 Outside Trainings
8610.88 Travel
8610.89 Recruiting
8610.90 Other Direct Expenses
Non-Labor costs
Total Costs
Net

Admin 11/30/2019
2019/2020 Actual Actual Actual
2016/2017 2017/2018 Budget Month Y-T-D s Budget
4,423 5,045 250,000 22,441 146,851 58.74%
935,421 999,443 1,098,672 92,086 460,429 41.91%
0 0 15,000 (14,455) (45,475) -303.16%
939,844 1,004,488 1,363,672 100,072 561,805 41.20%
(33,587) (235,531) (362,024) (17,273) (86,706) 23.95%
(22,225) (775) (5,587) 25.14%
(5,430) 0.00%
(663) (59,734) (1,788) (10,725) 17.95%
(579) 0.00%
(9,051) (1,000) 11.05%
(7,240) (1,226) 16.93%
(543) 0.00%
0 (663) {104,802) (2,562) (18,538) 17.69%
(33,587) {236,194) (466,826) (19,835) (105,244) 22.54%
(392,908) (332,287) (61,500) (1,318) (12,937) 21.04%
(15,195) (20,179) (30,000) (4,839) (13,411) 44.70%
{15,249) (19,231) (123,000) (17) (11,197) 9.10%
{1,538) (248) (620) 40.33%
(4,310) (19,685) (20,000) (760) (7,279) 36.40%
0
(441) (2,018)
(35,556) (26,582) (2,500) 0.00%
(11,198) (57,593) (9,200) 0.00%
0 (420) (420)
(16,578) (17,043) (35,000) (16,209) 46.31%
0
0
(12,554) (14,731) (19,475) (457) (11,802) 60.60%
(1,920) (3,030) (15,375) 500 500 -3.25%
(6,758) (17,363) (15,375) (662) (2,450) 15.94%
(10,250) (303) (303) 2.96%
(76,490) (34,233) (31,775) (1,035) (12,710) 40.00%
(588,716) (561,957) (374,988) (10,000) (90,855) 24.23%
(622,303) (798,151) (841,814) (29,834) (196,099) 23.29%
317,541 206,337 521,859 70,237 365,706 70.08%
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Mark Twain Health Care District Policy No. 19

Public Record Requests:

Requests for public records will be responded to in accordance with the California Public Records Act
(Government Code Section 6250, et seq.). The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for handling
public records requests and may consult with legal counsel, as needed.

PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS:

The District may charge a reasonable fee for coping records provided to the requesting party. The
charge shall be $0.15 per page for normal size pages and shall be adjusted for odd-sized pages or
copies that require special handling. The Chief Executive Officer or designee may waive the charge
for incidental copies not exceeding 10 pages, that require minimal handling. Labor costs may be
associated with digital or electronic copies. There shall be no charge for copies of documents
provided as part of a public meeting.

If the request is expected to involve a significant amount of copies and effort, District staff may make
an estimate of the cost, District staff may ask the requesting party to confirm that the proposed
charge and delivery time are acceptable and to signify acceptance in a reasonable manner (written
approval, email, etc.). District staff may require a deposit of the estimated cost before making copies.
Once the requesting party has agreed to the estimated cost and delivery date, District staff will have
the copies made and will deliver the copies when full payment is received.

If a person requests to inspect certain documents District staff will provide such an opportunity within
a reasonable period after the request. The document inspection may, at District staff's discretion, be
conducted under the supervision of a District employee. No documents may be tampered with in any
way. Document(s) shall not be removed or copied without District staff permission.

MTHCD Board Policy No. 19 (Last Updated 11-20-2019) to Brd 30-day Review Dec 18, 2019 to Brd 1-21-2020 Board
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Mark Twain Health Care District Policy No. 20

Records Retention

SCOPE:

This Records Retention Policy applies to offices and facilities maintaining records and information of
the Mark Twain Health Care District (the “District”).

This Document does not constitute the District’s policy with regard to public access to its records.
The District’s policy entitled Records Retention Policy provides procedures and principles governing
the public’s right to access public records.

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this policy is to provide requirements and guidelines for managing the life cycle of all
District records and information. The policy establishes a records retention program to apply efficient
and economical management methods to the creation, utilization, maintenance, retention,
preservation and disposal of all records used in the operations of District business.

All District records and information shall be retained and disposed of only in accordance with the
retention periods specified in the District’'s Records Retention Schedule. The Records Retention
Schedule is the District’s official policy for information retention and disposal, and it is developed in
accordance with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations, as well as good business
practices.

EXCLUSIONS:

The District recognizes certain documents have an historical significance and should be retained
indefinitely. The District Chief Executive Officer is authorized to retain those documents.

DEFINITIONS:

Non-Records — Material not usually included within the definition of records, such as unofficial copies
of documents kept only for convenience or reference, working papers, appointment logs, stocks of
publications and processed documents. Also, documents such as rough notes, calculations or drafts
assembled or created and used in the preparation or analysis of other documents.

Original Record — The Original Record is a document on file in the District’s office. Every
reproduction of an electronically stored document maintained by the District shall be deemed to be an
Original Record pursuant to Government Code Section 34090.5.

Public Records — Any information relating to the conduct of the public’s business prepared, owned,
used, or retained by any state or local agency regardless of physical form or characteristics.

Records — Any handwriting, typewriting, printing, photo stating, photographing, photocopying,
transmitting by electronic mail or facsimile, and every other means of recording upon any tangible
thing any form of communication or representation, including letters words, pictures, sounds, or
symbols, or combinations thereof, and any record thereby created, regardless of the manner in which
the record has been stored.

MTHCD Board Policy No. 20 (Last Updated 1-11-2020) to Brd 30-day Review Dec. 18, 2019 To Brd 1-21-2020
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RESPONSIBILITIES:
The Chief Executive Officer Shall

0 Appoint a person or persons to serve in the capacity of Records Retention
Coordinator, with overall responsibility for implementing the Records
Retention Policy for the District.

ADDITIONAL RETENTION POLICY GUIDELINES:
A. Copies of Original Records

Copies of Original Records may be maintained by the District's employees and Board Members in
their own offices or elsewhere for convenient reference or other purposes. Such additional copies
may be in the same format (paper, photographic, or electronic) or in a different format as the Original
Record. In either case, they are considered duplicate records for retention purposes.

Employees and Board Members are cautioned, however, that on some occasions a duplicate record
can become a “new” record and would, therefore, be subject to the records retention program. For
example, when annotations of substantive value are made to a duplicate record, that record may
attain value as a separate record, which may be considered a new “official” record for purposes of
retention.

B. Long-Term Document Retention

It is the District’s policy to minimize the storage of documents in paper format for long-term retention
periods. A long-term retention period is generally defined as a period of ten (10) years or more. For
these retention periods, electronic media should be utilized as the primary means for storage. For
those records with an established long-term retention period, the records should be electronically
imaged immediately, or at the earliest time practical, and the paper copy should be destroyed. Under
some circumstances, the Board of Directors may make the determination that the paper copy of a
record should be kept for a period up to, but not exceeding, the retention period. In addition, where
electronic storage is impractical for a particular record, long-term retention will be in the appropriate
format.

C. Non-Records

Non-records are not kept in the normal course of business, therefore, they may be disposed of at any
time. However, if a non-record is retained as an integral part of a file or in conjunction with Original
Records, then it shall be retained in accordance with the appropriate retention schedule.

D. E-mail Communications

Electronic communications, including e-mail, are generally considered transitory in nature, and are
not customarily kept or retained by the District as the primary means for preserving information for
future reference. Personal e-mail messages and announcements are not related to District business,
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copies or extracts of documents e-mailed for convenience or reference, internal e-mails created by
employees on work-related topics which do not facilitate action (i.e., cover notes, etc.), and e-mails
containing drafts, notes or inter-office memoranda that are not retained by the District in the ordinary
course of business are examples of such transitory communications.

However, e-mails created or received by District employees and Board Members in connection with
District business, or e-mails that facilitate action, such as initiation, authorizing or completing a
transaction in connection with District business may constitute a public record and should be retained.

E-mails which do not constitute a public record may be periodically or routinely purged from the
system without any necessary action of the sender or the recipient of the communications. If the
content of an e-mail message constitutes a public record, employees and Board Members are
required to migrate the document from the e-mail system to another platform or in another format for
storage and retention, to be kept in accordance with the Records Retention Schedule.

E. Electronic Data Retention

All retained information must be stored in a manner designed to ensure its accessibility, integrity,
confidentiality, authenticity, and legibility sufficient to ensure the integrity of the records for the
specified retention period. Conversion from one storage medium to another will include adequate
controls to support these requirements.

F. Destruction/Disposal of Records

Action by the Board of Directors of the District is not required for the destruction of documents in
accordance with the Board-approved Records Retention Schedule. However, no records may be
destroyed or otherwise disposed of except as provided in this policy and in compliance with the
Records Retention schedule.

Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code 8860200 through 60203, and the guidelines prepared
by the State Controller’s Advisory Committee for Special Districts, the following qualifications will
govern the retention and disposal of records of the District.

Documents must be shredded in a manner which ensures confidentiality.

G. Records Retention Schedule

The “Records Retention Schedule” is attached to this policy as Attachment. “A” and is incorporated
herein by reference. This policy and the records Retention Schedule comply with the records
retention guidelines provided by the California Secretary of State and may be updated from time to
time.
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RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE

Title and Description of Records Retention Comments
Period
CORRESPONDENCE
General Public 3 years
Reports Active +3 yrs.
FINANCIAL
Non-Discharged Debt of the District Permanent Cal. Gov't Code 60201
and Related Documents
Non-Personnel Expense Reports 4 years Or until audited, which ever is first
Budgets Permanent
Billing/Accounting Reports 4 years Or until audited, which ever is first
Budget Change Reports 4 years Or until audited, which ever is first
Audits 4 years Or until audited, which ever is first
Invoices (non fixed assets) 4 years Or until audited, which ever is first
Fees/Receipts 4 years Or until audited, which ever is first
Check Registers 4 years Or until audited, which ever is first
General Ledgers Permanent

Grants

Active +2 yrs.

Active until end of grant year

EQUIPMENT/SUPPLIES/
SPACE/CONSTRUCTION

Pending construction that the district
has not accepted or as to which a stop
notice claim legally may be presented

Permanent

Cal. Gov't Code 60201

Unaccepted bid or proposal for the
construction or installation of any
building, structure, or other public work

2 years

Cal. Gov't Code 60201

Construction Stop Notice

Active +2 yrs.

Cal. Gov't Code 60201

Purchase Request/Order

Active +4 yrs.

Active until items received
(4 years if subject to audit)

Service Orders/Authorizations

Active +2 yrs.

Active until services performed

Vendor Information

Active +2 yrs.

Active until revised

Building Maintenance/Leases

Active +2 yrs.

Active until lease terminates

Inspection Reports/Moves/Space

Active +2 yrs.

Active until revised/rescinded/superseded

Equipment Maintenance

Active +2 yrs.

Active until maintenance completed

Hardware/Software Documentation

Active +2 yrs.

Active until revised/rescinded/superseded

Invoices for Fixed Assets (non real
property)

Active +2 yrs.

Active until disposed of
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RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE

PERSONNEL
Employee Records/Attendance Active +7 Active until employee leaves/terminates**
Records/Applications yrIs.
Compensation paid to District Active +7 Active until employee leaves/terminates**
Employees, Officers or Independent yrs. Cal. Gov't Code 60201
Contractors
Expense Reports of District Active +7 Active until employee leaves/terminates**
Employees and Officers yIS. Cal. Gov't Code 60201
Employee/Officer Credit Card/Travel Active +7 Active until employee leaves/terminates**
Expenses yIS. Cal. Gov't Code 60201
POLICY/PROCEDURE/
ORGANIZATION
Documents Relating to: Permanent Gov't Code 60201 requires that these
Formation/ records be permanently retained.
Change of Organization/
Reorganization of the District
Ordinance adopted by the District Permanent Gov't Code 60201 requires that these
(5 records be permanently retained. However,
Years for an ordinance that has been repealed or is
repeal otherwise invalid or unenforceable may be

ordinances)

destroyed 5 years after it was repealed or
became invalid or unenforceable

Policies (All) Active Active until revised
Procedures (All) Active Active until revised
Mission Statements Active Active until revised
Meeting Permanent See Gov't Code 60201
Minutes/Agendas/Resolutions
Audio Tapes of Meetings Minimum 30 days/optional beyond that
Request for Proposals 3 yrs.
Contracts Active +4 Active until contract is discharged (+4 if
yIS. subject to audit). Cal. Gov't Code 60201
Plans and Goals Active Active until revised/rescinded/

superseded/Complete

Records subject to any pending
request under PRA, regardless of
whether the District maintains that

the record is exempt from disclosure

Unless governed
under another
category, records
should be
retained until the
request has been
granted, or 2
years have
elapsed since the
District provided
written notice to
the requester
that the request
has been denied.

See Gov't Code 60201
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RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE

RECORDS MANAGEMENT

Records Retention Schedule Active Active until revised

Records Destruction Authorization 4 yrs.

LEGISLATION/
REGULATIONS/

LEGAL
Legal Opinions Permanent
Law Suits/Small Claims Active +2 yrs. Active until litigation complete
Legal Opinions Permanent
FPPC Opinions Permanent
Conflict of Interest Forms 7 Years
MISCELLANEOUS
Title/Documents relating to Real Property Permanent Cal Gov't Code 60201

Owned by the District
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Mark Twain Health Care District Policy No. 21

Amendments To Policies, Procedures & Waiver of Policies:

AMENDMENTS TO POLICIES AND PROCEDURES Paolicies and Procedures may be amended by
resolution of the Board of Directors following the noticing of the proposed amendment, which will be
attached, including language to be changed, at a regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors,
and a vote by the majority of the District Board on the proposed amendments at a regular meeting
occurring not less than thirty (30) days following the first meeting.

WAIVER OF POLICIES. Any provision of these policies (1) may be waived by the unanimous vote of
the full District Board for any given action item and (2) may waive the 30-day implementation
procedure.

Last approved May 27, 2015

MTHCD Board Policy No. 21 Amendments to Policies & Procedures and Waiver of Policies (To Policy Comm 11-
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Mark Twain Health Care District Policy No. 24
Website Content and Social Media:

24.1 WEBSITE CONTENT. In order to increase public awareness of the District’s role and promote
transparency, the District’'s website must include the following information: District’'s contact
information; the District’s governance including biographies and contact information for the Board of
Directors; a map of the District’'s boundaries; agendas and notices of upcoming District Board
meetings; staff reports or other backup material for upcoming Board of Directors meetings; the
District’'s annual report, audit, and operating budget; the lease between the Mark Twain Medical

Center and The Mark Twain Health Care District as well as other information deemed appropriate by
the District Board.

24.2 SOCIAL MEDIA. Any and all social media accounts maintained on behalf of the District by the

District’s staff, and/or Directors shall promote the District’'s Mission Statement, Vision, and Strategic
Plan.
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